
 

Denham, Gerrards Cross & Chalfonts Community Board 
agenda 

Date: Tuesday 10 November 2020 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Via MS Teams 

Membership: 

D Anthony, M Bradford, D Bray, T Butcher, S Chhokar (Chairman), I Darby, D Dhillon, C Ford, 
B Gibbs, B Harding, M Harrold, G Hollis, C Jackson, M Lewis, D Martin, S Patel, R Reed, 
C Rouse, J Rush, D Smith, L Smith BEM and J Wertheim 

Chalfont St Giles Parish Council; Chalfont St Peter Parish Council; Denham Parish Council; 
Fulmer Parish Council; Gerrards Cross Town Council; Hedgerley Parish Council; Seer Green 
Parish Council 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded and the video will be available on YouTube 
on the day after the meeting.  

Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 

1 Apologies for absence   
    
2 Declarations of Interest   
    
3 Minutes  3 - 10 
 of the meeting held on 15 September 2020. 

 
  

4 Introduction and Questions and Answers with the Police   
    
5 HS2 Update from Align   
    
6 Community Fridge presentation   
    
7 Covid Hub update - Katie Galvin (BC)   
    
8 Working Group Updates and Notes of Meetings  11 - 16 



 A Business Forum – Steve Weston (Notes to follow) 
B Climate Change/Environment – Tim Butcher (Notes      

to follow) 
C Covid Reset and Recovery – Guy Hollis 
D Community Safety - Andrew Wood/Tony Shinner 
E Highways/Infrastructure – Jonathan Rush – Update 

on recommendations for transport applications 
that have been to the Working Group (Notes to 
follow) 

 

  

9 Parish Updates (verbal)   
    
10 Community Matters (questions)   
    
11 Date of Next Meeting   
 11 February 2020 at 6pm  

 
  

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Clare Gray on , email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 



 

 

Denham, Gerrards Cross & Chalfonts Community Board 
minutes 

Minutes of the meeting of the Denham, Gerrards Cross & Chalfonts Community Board held 
on Tuesday 15 September 2020 in Via MS Teams, commencing at 6.00 pm and concluding at 
7.35 pm. 

Committee members present 

D Bray, S Chhokar, I Darby, D Dhillon, B Gibbs, B Harding, G Hollis, C Jackson, M Lewis, 
D Martin, R Reed, D Smith, L Smith BEM and J Wertheim 

Parish Council Members present 

D Brackin – Fulmer Village Parish Council  
C Brown – Gerrards Cross Town Council  
G Kirkby – Chalfont St Giles Parish Council  
T Shinner – Chalfont St Peter Parish Council  
J Walsh – Denham Parish Council  
A Wood – Gerrards Cross Town Council  
 
Officers in attendance 

H Allmand, J Boultbee, J Brar, R Chilton, D Denyer (Careers springboard), H Griffiths, J 
Ingram, C McGregor-Paterson, H Mee, S Weston  
 

Apologies 

D Anthony, M Bradford, T Butcher, C Ford, M Harrold, S Patel, C Rouse and J Rush 

Agenda Item 

1 Declarations of Interest 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
2 Minutes 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2020 were agreed as a correct record.  

 
3 Leader's video 
 A YouTube video from Councillor Martin Tett, Leader of Buckinghamshire Council, 

was shown regarding the launch of the Community Boards (CB). 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

https://youtu.be/f0i722j79hw 
 

4 Oasis Partnership - Colin McGregor- Paterson 
 https://www.oasispartnership.org/ 

 
The Oasis Partnership is a charity that provides high quality social and psychological 
support services to improve health and well being. They work in partnership with 
many different organisations, aiming to help individuals to address their substance 
misuse problems and get their lives back on track. The Oasis Partnership also work 
on other areas such as the Building Futures programme which was focussed on 
changing the lives of adults and young people across Buckinghamshire. The 
programme brings together eight partners within Buckinghamshire to support at 
least 400 people over the next two and a half years to move them closer to learning 
or work. 
 
A video was shown of the new premises in High Wycombe town centre which was a 
collaborative project with a number of key stakeholders. These premises can be 
used as a community resource for meetings, hot desking and community activities 
e.g. men in sheds and other projects to help social isolation including outreach work. 
Funding for this fantastic community resource had come from a number of 
organisations including the Clare Foundation, Heart of Bucks and other local 
charities. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to the work being carried out. 
 

5 Wycombe Homeless Connection - James Boultbee 
 James Boultbee and Rosemary Chilton gave a presentation on their work at the 

Wycombe Homeless Connection who help people who are homeless or at the risk of 
becoming homeless by:- 
 

 Preventing homelessness before it starts 

 Reducing harm for people who are homeless 

 Helping house people who are homeless 

 Defending the rights of people who are homeless or facing homelessness 

 Helping those people who live on the street or in temporary accommodation 
through a range of support services 

 Homeless health 

 Resettlement: finding people a more permanent home 

 Advocacy services 
 
James informed Members that the main aim was to prevent homelessness in the 
first place because of the damage that was caused to people once they were on the 
street such as mental health and addiction issues. In terms of the work shown above 
there were a number of projects being managed to address these issues. For 
example, with regard to advocacy services advice was being provided on housing 
issues, legal clinics were being provided and anyone was eligible to join. They were 
receiving queries on areas such as evictions, becoming unemployed and benefits not 

Page 4

https://youtu.be/f0i722j79hw
https://www.oasispartnership.org/


 

 

covering the rent. According to information they had received High Wycombe was 
the fourth worst hit area in terms of universal credit claims going up during the 
covid-19 pandemic. 
 
One of the Board Members who was also Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Homelessness reported that this was a high priority for the Council and partnership 
working with voluntary organisations to prevent homelessness. She praised the 
work of Wycombe Homeless Connection. 
 
A question was asked about providing winter shelter for the homeless but James 
explained that this was not necessary this year as there was now a protocol, because 
of the covid-19 pandemic, to bring the homeless inside and Buckinghamshire Council 
had been extremely active in this regard providing bed and breakfast 
accommodation which was being funded by the Council. Where possible longer term 
solutions were being found. 
 
Rosemary gave an update on the legal clinics being provided as part of a one-year 
project. These were being provided virtually but also face to face where required. 
Advice was being provided by a housing solicitor (from a law centre) and also 
experienced practitioners in housing benefit and advocacy work so that the best 
advice could be given to clients including any information on follow up services e.g. 
legal aid and independent free legal advice. There had been an increase in illegal 
evictions and landlord harassment. Many clients were not aware of their rights and 
therefore lost their homes as a result so this project was crucial in preventing 
homelessness. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to the work being carried out. 
 
https://www.wyhoc.org.uk/ 
 

6 Heart of Bucks - Henry Allmand 
 Henry Allmand attended the meeting to provide an update on the Heart of Bucks 

which was a community foundation for Buckinghamshire; a funding organisation 
awarding grants and loans to local charities and community groups. Community 
foundations were dedicated to improving the lives of people in a defined local 
geographical area. They brought together the financial resources of individuals, 
families, and businesses to support effective non-profits in their communities. One 
of the strengths of Heart of Bucks was their unique understanding of the needs of 
Buckinghamshire. Through research and outreach work they ensure that funding 
reaches those who need it most and can use it effectively. 
 
As one of the largest non-statutory funders in the county, together with donors, 
they have supported more than 3,500 community organisations since their first 
grant payment in 2000. To date, they have distributed over £8.7m in grants and 
loans across Buckinghamshire. They are part of a network of 46 community 
foundations across the UK, all striving to help people and organisations invest in 
their communities. Heart of Bucks continues to generate funds through the Bucks 

Page 5

https://www.wyhoc.org.uk/


 

 

Coronavirus Stabilisation Fund and have received funding of approximately £500,000 
this year. They have been working very closely with Buckinghamshire Council, 
National Lottery and the Rothschild Foundation in the distribution of funding. Since 
April there has been £1million in emergency grants. 
 
Henry referred to the six core areas that Heart of Bucks addressed:- 
 

 Disadvantage 

 Health and wellbeing – Isolation  

 Education  

 Community cohesion  

 Environment  

 Art and culture  
 
Heart of Bucks, the Rothschild Foundation and The Clare Foundation have launched 
their Buckinghamshire Wellbeing Capacity Fund. Successful applicants would receive 
a one-off grant to deliver a holistic project working to create new capacity to 
support wellbeing across the county and make Buckinghamshire’s recovery from the 
coronavirus pandemic sustainable, with reach into all communities. One of the main 
aims was to support potential new ways of working for the sector that would have 
both immediate and longer term impact. The closing date for applications is 30th 
September 2020. 
 
In addition to demonstrating a holistic approach to wellbeing, projects should 
incorporate active engagement with at least one of the following priority groups or 
issues in their proposal: 
 
BAME groups 
‘Green’ recovery and environmental sustainability 
Digital inclusion & accessibility 
The LGBTQ+ community 
Young people aged under 25 
Physical activity & health 
  
Members expressed their thanks to the work being carried out. 
 
https://heartofbucks.org/buckinghamshire-wellbeing-capacity-fund/ 
https://heartofbucks.org/grants/apply-for-a-grant/ 
 

7 The Clare Foundation - Helen Mee 
 https://theclarefoundation.org/ 

 
The Clare Foundation is a charity that brings together key stakeholders, partners, 
businesses and charitable organisations to facilitate and create positive change 
across society in Buckinghamshire. Their mission was to bring the forces of kindness 
together to tackle the root causes of unhappiness in Buckinghamshire. They do this 
by: 

Page 6

https://heartofbucks.org/buckinghamshire-wellbeing-capacity-fund/
https://heartofbucks.org/grants/apply-for-a-grant/
https://theclarefoundation.org/


 

 

 
1. Facilitating multi-stakeholder projects and programmes aimed at solving the 

key issues within Buckinghamshire that bring together charities, businesses 
and key infrastructure organisations such as Buckinghamshire Council. 

2. Offering free advice and support to charities and not-for-profit organisations 
in order to help them become more effective and efficient. 

3. Providing Social Investment Loans (interest free) to charities and not-for-
profits to assist with their core business and strategic development. 

4. Developing impactful Corporate Social Responsibility projects and 
programmes by encouraging businesses and charities to co-collaborate for 
mutual benefit. 

5. Organising seminars and workshops for charity personnel to improve skills 
and provide tools to improve knowledge and education. 

6. Facilitating Charity Leader Forums that provide intelligence, knowledge and 
connectivity on a peer to peer basis. 

 
The Clare Foundation are working in partnership with Buckinghamshire 
Council, Community Impact Bucks, Heart of Bucks, Leap, Rothschild 
Foundation, Bucks Business First and Action for Youth to ensure that individuals, 
charities, community organisations, voluntary groups and businesses within 
Buckinghamshire have up-to-date information on services and grants available to 
them. They have been working in partnership on the voluntary and community cell 
with the volunteer matching service and the emergency food response also 
facilitating meetings between partners on areas such as impact of covid-19 on the 
BAME community and the Wellbeing Capacity Fund (see above). The aim of these 
sessions was to think creatively and problem solve. 
 
Helen particularly referred to their social isolation project where they were working 
together with Your SimPal and other local charities to help prevent loneliness and 
isolation among the older community. The Clare Foundation would be working 
together with Age UK Bucks and Bucks Older Persons Action Group (BOPAG) to 
deliver the pilot project; which will provide a brand new smartphone and 6-month 
prepaid SIM card to 50 isolated, older adults across Buckinghamshire. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to the work being carried out. 
 

8 Update from Sub-Groups 
 Business Forum 

Steve Weston gave an update on this Sub Group which was the only business group 
set up by Community Boards. On the Group they had representation from Bucks 
Business First (Philippa Batting Managing Director), Buckinghamshire Council 
Economic Development Team and Ward Members. Steve had a background in 
setting up a platform to help find an easy way for local shops and businesses to sell 
online. 
 
He informed the Board that there were 34,000 businesses in Buckinghamshire of 
which about one third were registered with Bucks Business First some of which were 

Page 7

https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/community-hub/
https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/community-hub/
https://communityimpactbucks.org.uk/covid-19-guidance-and-advice-for-voluntary-groups-and-volunteers/
https://heartofbucks.org/local-coronavirus-resource-directory/
https://www.leapwithus.org.uk/
https://rothschildfoundation.org.uk/
https://rothschildfoundation.org.uk/
https://bbf.uk.com/covid-19
https://www.action4youth.org/


 

 

struggling, surviving and reviving during the covid-19 pandemic. The Group were 
aiming to provide workshops to businesses which provided an opportunity to create 
best practice and helping regenerate the high street. There was also funding 
available from Bucks Business First to help small businesses and it was important to 
provide information on these opportunities. Information could be provided on the 
Community Board website and social media relevant to businesses in the local area. 
There were also other opportunities if office space became available to use this 
space for other activities.  
 
A Member provided information on restart grants where the government has 
announced two new packages of support to help existing and established businesses 
across England get back on track. Part of this package will be the allocation of 120 
grants of between £1000-£3000 to businesses with a minimum turnover of £50,000 
prior to COVID-19. The grants would provide 100% funding for a project between 
£1,000 and £3,000 (excl. VAT). Businesses must show that the activity funded by 
these grants was in direct response to the impact of COVID-19. 
 
https://bbf.uk.com/forms/restart-grant 
https://careersspringboard.org.uk/ 
 
Climate Change 
 
This Sub-Group was being led by Cllr Tim Butcher who had been in contact with his 
Group. One of their ideas was because this linked so closely with the younger age 
group to organise an art competition for primary schools of which some of these 
pictures could be used on bins in the area to raise awareness of the environment. 
They would liaise with the Waste Team at Buckinghamshire Council. Members were 
asked to pass on the details of any local schools that would be interested in taking 
part. 
 
Covid-19 Reset and Recovery 
 
Cllr Guy Hollis gave an update on this Sub-Group. He was arranging a meeting of the 
Sub Group and had been discussing its terms of reference. They would like to have 
face to face meetings at town and parish councils venues and would like to include 
primary care networks. As part of this Sub-Group they would like to look at 
devolution of assets and using local venues to help community groups such as social 
groups for young mothers and babies, men in sheds, food banks etc and to link in 
with the voluntary and community sector to help vulnerable children and adults. 
This Sub-Group also had an interest in keeping the high street vibrant and would 
work closely with the Business Forum. They would add information to the 
Community Board website on Community Support Hubs. 
 
Community Safety (Andrew Wood, Anthony Shinner, John O’Keeffe) 
 
Andrew Wood gave an update on the Community Safety Sub Group. John O’Keeffe 
was leading on the CCTV installation for Gerrards Cross, with 27 cameras coming on 

Page 8

https://bbf.uk.com/forms/restart-grant
https://careersspringboard.org.uk/


 

 

board. A license would be needed for each person required to see the footage. 
There was a conversation being had around who would take over the costs to run 
the signal of the cameras from Gerrards Cross to TVP. There would also be a 
monitoring charge for this. John estimated that each static, fixed camera would cost 
£200 and that 10 cameras might suffice for Chalfont St Peter. 
 
Anthony Shinner at the sub-group meeting had commented that the main interests 
of Chalfont St Peter in terms of this sub-group was around anti-social behaviour and 
CCTV. There was to be some upgrading of the current 2 CCTV cameras by the former 
Chiltern District Council, and an addition of a third camera. They would link in with 
the Neighbourhood Action Group (NAG).  
 
It was found that both Gerrards Cross and Chalfont St Peter have a lot of similarities 
in terms of their Community Safety priorities. In terms of The Quietway, at a 
meeting of the Gerrards Cross Town Council on Monday 7th September, it was 
agreed it would be preferable to remove it. Everyone had agreed that this should 
have no bearing on the outcome of the quietway within Chalfont St Peter. 
 
It was shared that the free parking in CSP was paid for by the Parish Council. Other 
areas that were discussed was that there was frustration at the length of time it 
takes to get through on 101 with a suggestion of trying to find a non-crime link or 
email address for reporting purposes. Another suggestion was made that a more 
user-friendly way of reporting multiples crimes was needed. 
 
In terms of Public Space Protection Orders, there was one at the park next to 
Robertswood School, and that this had been worth the work it took to put it in 
place. 
 
David Brackin expressed concern about the crime rate in New Denham and referred 
to some eateries which had late night licences which were causing anti-social 
behaviour and they had received about 80 complaints. 
 
The Board had a discussion about the police attending the Board meeting. Whilst 
Members would find this helpful they were also concerned that this took the police 
away from their operational work. A Member referred to the work of the Chiltern 
Community Forum and commented that their next meeting was on 23 September at 
6.30pm. This was a very useful forum that discussed setting crime priorities for 
Chiltern. 
 
https://www.chilterncommunityforum.org/ 
 
Highways and Infrastructure 
 
This Sub-Group had not met yet but was likely to meet in the next 2-3 weeks and an 
update would be given at the next Board meeting. 
 

9 Update on future communications 

Page 9

https://www.chilterncommunityforum.org/


 

 

 The Community Board Co-ordinator gave an update on future communications of 
the Board. She referred to setting up a Facebook page with support from the design 
team at Buckinghamshire Council. She asked Members to provide as much local 
information as possible to add to the site including any contact details for any 
community groups, local organisations, local businesses etc. A webpage would also 
be developed to support this which would link in with the Board papers. There had 
also been discussions about distributing a local newsletter. 
 
The Chairman reported that he had met recently with other Community Board 
Chairman where they had commented on the need to promote the work of 
Community Boards and the need to access resources and develop local networks. 
Members supported this approach. 
 

10 Updated funding guidelines 
 The Community Board Co-ordinator would send out the guidelines to Members. 

Once suitable applications had been received which met the criteria funding would 
then be released. 
 

11 Community Matters (questions) 
 In response to a question raised at the last meeting about previous funding given 

out by Local Area Forums Members noted that this funding was still committed and 
work would be carried out on Mill Lane Bridge. 
 
With regard to the question on S106 funding, a response was still awaited and would 
be given shortly. 
 

12 Date of Next Meeting 
 10 November 2020 at 6pm. 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
Covid Reset and Recovery Sub-Group 

1st October 2020 
MS TEAMS 

 
 

Attendees: Guy Hollis, Ani Sultan 
 
Notes: 
 

 Purpose of this group 
o The purpose of this subcommittee is to provide support and advice to anyone and 

anybody who requires our assistance in the form of advice and/ or a capital grant to 
provide a service that will help residents in the Board area 

o It will be run by a chairman and secretary and membership shall be open to all 
residents who wish to attend.  

o It will attempt to hold meetings in between the Board’s meetings. 
o It will report to the Community Board at its meetings where approval for provision 

of assistance as mentioned above will be sought before any action is taken 

 Plans to return to face to face meetings. 
o Fixed venue or move from place to place? 

 PCN’s 
o Patient care networks – Ani had a meeting with the PCNs, but they were both 

leaving their posts 
o Will keep an eye and make contact when positions are filled 

 Devolved assets 
o GH sent email to John Chilver to see if the process could be expediated cc 

Leader and CEX 
o GH cited the email 
o PC have heard nothing from them re: further to confirmation of pilot project 
o Surveys and referenda to find out what is needed 

 Parish projects 
o Denham PC –have a list 
o All Town and Parish Councils to be asked what on-the-go- projects they have at 

the moment 
o Joint assessment health needs report – look at it re: dementia and the need 

 Local support groups 
o Support local charities 
o Thames Valley Hospice – thames valley hospice support group – GH to send details 

on how to contact 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community Safety Sub-group 

11th September 
MS TEAMS 

 

Attendees: Andrew Wood, Ani Sultan, Anthony Shinner, John O’Keeffe 
 

Notes: 

 John O’Keeffe was leading on the CCTV installation for Gerrards Cross, with 27 cameras 

coming on board 

o A license would be needed for each person required to see the footage 

 There is a conversation being had around who would take over the costs to 

run the signal of the cameras from Gerrards Cross to TVP. 

 There would also be a monitoring charge for this 

o John estimated that each static, fixed camera would cost £200 

o John estimated that 10 cameras might suffice for Chalfont St Peter 

 Anthony Shinner expressed that the main interests of Chalfont St Peter in terms of this sub-

group was around anti-social behaviour and CCTV. 

o There was to be some upgrading of the current 2 CCTV cameras by the former 

Chiltern District Council, and an addition of a third camera. 

o The Neighbourhood Action Group (NAG) would be next meeting on the 16th 

September at 6pm, via Zoom, and the sub-group would be more than welcome to 

attend. 

 It was found that both Gerrards Cross and Chalfont St Peter have a lot of similarities in terms 

of their Community Safety priorities 

 The Quietway 

o At a meeting of the Gerrards Cross Town Council on Monday 7th September, it was 

agreed it would be preferable to remove it 

o All agreed that this should have no bearing on the outcome of the quietway within 

Chalfont St Peter. 

 Parking 

o It was shared that the free parking in CSP was paid for by the Parish Council 

 Reporting Issues 

o There was frustration at the length of time it takes to get through on 101 

o Suggestion of trying to find a non-crime link or email address for reporting purposes 

o Also a suggestion that a more user-friendly way of reporting multiples crimes was 

needed 

 Public Space Protection Orders 

o Noted that there was one at the park next to Robertswood School, and that this had 

been worth the work it took to put it in place. 

Page 13

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community Safety Sub-group 

20th October 
MS TEAMS 

 

Attendees: Andrew Wood, Ani Sultan, Anthony Shinner, Jag Kandola, John O’Keeffe, Mary 
Phillips 
 
Notes: 
 

 Andrew and John gave a brief history of how the police had started to make their presence 
felt in GX further to incidents 

 Mary explained that there had been a lot of incidents in CSG during lockdown, but that 
police had not been particularly responsive 

 Any questions for the police to be sent to Ani so that they can be sent onto the Police before 
the community board 

 CCTV in CSG playing field had been attacked, now have anti-climb paint 
o Ongoing project for the village re: CCTV. 
o Expenditure vs Crime numbers is the current thought 
o Mary (plus CSG Clerk) and John to have a chat re: CCTV – Tony to also come along re: 

his experience 

 GX is installing CCTV  
o Issue with BC, many meetings re: protocol etc. for this 

 Jag – as it is getting darker, the only way to deter is through CCTV and word of mouth 

 Fulmer have found that if you have ANPR the police will also take on the monitoring of the 
CCTV 

 Andrew gave a brief summary of We are GX 

 Jag spoke of the value of Next Door 

 CSP NAG has been running Community Speed Check for 4 years 
o Only one person has been abusive towards the group 
o Ran 7 speed checks in 10 days, which changed driver attitude 

 Jag – A413 between CSP and GX – fatal collision 
o Would ideally like a reduction in speed 
o What is the route to reduce a speed reduction? 

 John – paid for a speed survey to be carried out when they thought there was a speed issue.  

 Andrew suggested Jag and Tony to write to Nick Naylor as Portfolio Holder for Transport 

 Mary – crossing paint seems to be fading? A413 by the double mini roundabout 
o It was difficult to get hold of Highways - Ani to try and chase 

 Other issues: 
o McDonald’s car park and environmental issues from cars 
o Children’s crossing being required in Denham 
o Add Anne Marie Vladar, David Brackin and Guy Hollis to the list of working group 

members 

Page 15

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Working Group Updates and Notes of Meetings
	1. Community Safety Sub-group 11 September 2020
	2. Community Safety Sub-group 20 October 2020


